
Gloucestershire Schools Forum

Wednesday 21 June 2017 at 2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester



    



    

Gloucestershire Schools Forum
Wednesday 21 June 2017

2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Joanne Bolton

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members of the Forum must declare an interest in any agenda item where 
the outcome may give them a direct pecuniary advantage or avoid a 
disadvantage.  A form is available at the back of the meeting room.

Joanne Bolton

3  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

To receive any public questions.  Questions can be asked on the day or 
sent to the Clerk before the meeting.  A written answer will be provided if 
questions are received 3 clear working days before the date of the 
meeting.  The Chairman will advise timescale for any questions asked on 
the day of the meeting or received less than 3 working days before the 
meeting.

Joanne Bolton

4  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 16 March 2017.

Joanne Bolton

5  A LOCAL SYSTEM THAT WORKS FOR CHILDREN - FOLLOW UP 
DISCUSSION IN LIGHT OF THE GENERAL ELECTION OUTCOME 

Stewart King

6  INSPECTION OF SERVICES FOR CHILDREN IN NEED OF HELP AND 
PROTECTION, CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER AND CARE LEAVERS 

Linda Uren

7  HIGH NEEDS (Pages 9 - 54) Stewart King

8  OUTTURN AND SCHOOL BALANCES 2016/17 (Pages 55 - 66) Neil Egles, 
Suzanne Hall, 
Stewart King

9  F40 Gillian Hayward



    

10  MEETING DATES 2018 

To note the meeting dates in 2018:

All meetings take place at 2pm in the Cabinet Suite of Shire Hall. 

11 January
15 March
10 May
21 June
20 September
15 November

Joanne Bolton

(a) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect Minutes or 
Reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact:
Joanne Bolton, Clerk to the Forum
:01452 324197/e-mail: joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

(b) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1 Will Members please sign the attendance list.

mailto:joanne.bolton@gloucestershire.gov.uk


1

GLOUCESTERSHIRE SCHOOLS FORUM
Minutes of a meeting held on Thursday 16 March 2017

in the Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester.

Present:

Colin Belford - Secondary School Headteachers
Melissa Bradshaw - Special School Headteacher
John Coles - Primary Head Teachers
Graham Doswell - Primary School Governors
Andrew Harris - Secondary Head Teachers
Gillian Hayward - Secondary School Governors
Amanda Horniman - Early Years Providers
Emma Jarman - 14-19 Provision
Gwyneth Keen - Early Years Providers
Elizabeth Knox - Secondary School Governors
Ian Marshall - Primary School Governors
Marie Owen - Special School Governors
Brian Robinson - Alternative Provision Schools
Rosy Savory - Clifton Diocese
Steve Savory - Primary Head Teachers
Jim Stenson - Secondary School Governors
Andrew Steward - Trade Unions

Observers: Cllr Paul McLain, Cabinet Member – Children and Young People & 
Strategic Commissioning

Officers: Stewart King, Lead Commissioner: Education and Skills
Tim Browne, Head of Education
Neil Egles, Finance Manager: Schools, Strategy and Capital
Suzanne Hall, Finance Business Partner
Joanne Bolton, Democratic Services Adviser

Apologies: Keely Folker, Primary Head Teachers
Karen Lewis, Primary Head Teachers
Will Morgan, Secondary School Headteachers
Sara Morris, Primary School Governors
Stuart Wilson, Secondary Head Teachers
Linda Uren, Commissioning Director: Children and Families 

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

2 

15.1 Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills, declared an interest in 
relation to Item 5 on the agenda, (High Needs), specifically the Coln House School 
update, in respect of his position as a Coln House Interim Executive Board 
member.

15.2 Elizabeth Knox, (Secondary School Governor representative) declared an interest 
in relation to Item 5 on the agenda, (High Needs), specifically the Coln House 
School update, in respect of her position as the Former Chair of Governors at Coln 
House School.

16. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions were received.

17. MINUTES 

17.1 The minutes of the previous meeting of 12 January 2017 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair, subject to the following amendments:

 The second sentence in paragraph 6.4 be amended to read: ‘The school was 
currently showing a budget deficit of £800,000. …..’.

 The second sentence in paragraph 5.8 be amended to read, ‘It was reported 
that Cheltenham All Saints Academy….’.

17.2 The minutes of the previous meeting of 9 February 2017 were approved as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair.

18. HIGH NEEDS 

18.1 Stewart King, Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills, presented a detailed 
report on High Needs.  The following High Needs issues were considered:

18.2 Current Trends

18.2.1 He reported that there were some clear trends evident that were of a major concern 
in managing High needs over the longer term, including the significant increase in 
requests for statutory assessments and the increasing number of children with an 
Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP).

18.2.2 The Forum noted that whilst the proportion of children identified on the January 
2016 school census as being on Special Educational Needs support had declined 
from 12.7% in 2015 to 11.8%, the number of children with an EHCP in January 
2017 (a total of 3,044), had increased by 25.5% (a total of 619) from the numbers at 
1 April 2015 (a total of 2,425).  The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills 
explained that the majority of the increase was accounted for by young people aged 
16-19.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

3 

18.2.3 The Forum noted that the number of permanent exclusions in Gloucestershire 
remained much higher than in comparator authorities.  The number of children on 
the Elective Home Education Register had increased by over 50% since 2011/12.  

18.3 The High Needs Budget

18.3.1 The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills reported that the High Needs 
budget for the current year was projected to overspend by £2.1M.  A key area of 
overspending related to independent special schools (partly due to the closure of 
Coln House), which accounted for £1.55M of the overspend. Dedicated Schools 
Grant balances held for the purposes of supporting High Needs (with the exception 
of the specific reserves for Early Years and balances on funds de-delegated from 
maintained schools), would be used to meet the projected 2016/17 overspend.  

18.3.2 The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills, reported that an increase of 
£3.2M to Gloucestershire’s High Needs allocation over 2016/17 meant that the 
impact of the trends would be covered in budget for 2017/18, but with no allocation 
for inflation.  The Forum acknowledged that the major concern was for the longer 
term, with no prospect of any cash increase in the High Needs block for four years. 
Reference was made to new approaches being needed such as more focus on 
early intervention and understanding the root cause of the developing trends, if 
spending was to be contained within budget. 

18.3.3 Melissa Bradshaw, Special School Headteacher representative, explained that 
there were a number of major concerns around special school funding including 
provision for early intervention. The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills 
explained that he was due to meet with GAPH and GASH and would welcome the 
opportunity to discuss the issues further with headteachers of special schools. 

18.3.4 The Forum agreed the proposed High Needs budget for 2017/18. 

18.4 Coln House 

18.4.1 The Forum was updated on the latest position regarding the closure of Coln House, 
including the associated key costs.  Elizabeth Knox, Secondary School Governor 
representative, and former Chair of Governors at Coln House, contended that 
safeguarding issues identified through the combined OFSTED of residential and 
education provision which placed Coln House in Special Measures, centred mainly 
on the poor state of the school building.  

18.4.2 The Forum noted that with falling pupil numbers and the premises and staff costs, 
had the school not closed it was estimated that the deficit by 31 March 2019 would 
have been in excess of £2.5M.  Tim Browne, Head of Education, emphasised 
however, that the overriding factor in the decision to close the school was to ensure 
the safety of the pupils.

18.4.3 In response to a question, the Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills 
explained that the place allocation funding for the 40 places at Coln House, was 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

4 

being held separately within the High Needs block.  A member of the Forum 
suggested that the funding should be redistributed to facilitate 40 new places in 
special schools as special school places were set to be full for September 2017.

18.4.4 Officers emphasised that careful consideration had to be given to prioritising spend 
for specialist provision; ensuring that it was located appropriately and that children 
were being supported across the provision, not just at the high end.  

18.5 Alternative Provision

18.5.1 The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills explained that Alternative 
Provision schools in the county were either full or over their place numbers.  The 
expectation was that the Government would proceed with the proposal outlined in 
the White Paper Educational Excellence Everywhere (Published March 2016), to 
transfer to mainstream schools the financial responsibility for excluded pupils.  This 
would mean that the excluded pupils would stay on the roll of their mainstream 
schools. The mainstream schools were therefore responsible for commissioning 
and funding Alternative Provision.  He confirmed that the DfE did not approve either 
of the two Wave 12 free school proposals for new Alternative Provision in 
Gloucestershire.  

18.5.2 It was reported that the Cheltenham Association of Secondary Heads was looking 
into options (most notably the Area Behaviour Partnerships in Warwickshire) for an 
alternative model for meeting the needs of permanently excluded pupils.

18.6 National Funding Formula for High Needs

18.6.1 The Forum considered the DfE’s presentation on its consultation on the National 
Funding Formula for High Needs, which set out the detail behind the proposed 
formula.  The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills explained that the 
proposed formula would not favour Gloucestershire, but that the formula factors 
appeared reasonable.  The Forum therefore accepted the basis of the proposed 
formula subject to the pushing for a higher population formula factor, which local 
analysis had found to be the greatest determinant of costs.  

18.6.2 The Forum agreed its response to the consultation.

18.7 High Needs costs benchmarking

18.7.1 The Forum considered the data extracted from the DfE High Needs benchmarking 
tool, which was tabled at the meeting.  It was noted that the costs showing for 
Wiltshire (as a similar sized authority) were lower than Gloucestershire’s across a 
number of different factors.  Notably, Wiltshire did not have any Pupil Referral Units 
or Alternative Provision places and therefore no associated costs .  However, this 
was due to it being part of the government’s ‘Exclusions Pilot’, which transferred 
responsibility for excluded pupils to secondary schools rather than councils. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

5 

18.7.2 With regard to the national picture it was reported that Gloucestershire’s High 
Needs figures were in the most part close to the average figures for England.  It 
was reported that in the London boroughs there was a high level of inclusion of 
pupils with special educational needs in mainstream schools.  Again, in the South-
West of England, there was a relatively high level of inclusion of pupils with SEND 
in mainstream schools, but in contrast to London boroughs, the South-West was 
overall a low-funded area.  In the North-East area there was a higher number of 
special school places, rather than mainstream school inclusion.

18.8 Strategic Plan for High Needs

The Forum noted that the development of a Strategic Plan for High Needs would be 
a major priority for the Forum. The County Council had been allocated £247,000 
from central government to assist the Plan’s development.  Gloucestershire’s Joint 
Implementation Strategy for Children and Young People with Additional Needs, 
including Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, would be the major building 
block for the Strategic Plan.  

19. EARLY YEARS 

19.1 The Forum received an update on the Early Years Funding Formula for 2017/18.

19.2 The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills reported that Gloucestershire’s 
overall funding for three and four year olds from central government would be at the 
‘floor level’ of £4.30 per hour.   The average rate to providers including the 
deprivation and quality supplement was £4.08.  The base rate would be £3.90 per 
hour.  

19.3 A member of the Forum pointed out the variance between Gloucestershire’s 
funding figure from central government for three and four year olds, and the figure 
for an area such as Bristol, which was much higher in comparison.  Suzanne Hall, 
Finance Business Partner, explained however that in an area such as Bristol, the 
higher living and land costs, even the deprivation factor, once factored into the 
formula would push the figure up.  

19.4 As agreed at the January meeting of the Forum, providers were consulted on 
whether to introduce a quality supplement and how it might be funded.  The Forum 
noted the document outlining the results of the survey for Early Years Providers 
(January 2017).  The document summarised that the majority of responders 
favoured the option of allocating the funding designated for the supplementary 
quality payment to support work undertaken by Gloucestershire County Council to 
support the Early Years Sector. 

19.5 The Forum discussed the proposed Early Years Single Funding Formula.  The 
Forum’s members representing Early Years’ providers informed the Forum that in 
the main providers were happy with the proposed single funding formula. However, 
the concern remained that it would not be financially viable for some providers to 
provide the additional 15 hours of childcare for parents from September 2017 with a 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

6 

base rate of just £3.90 per hour; however, there was recognition that some smaller 
businesses may benefit with more children coming in.  There were also concerns 
around the precarious financial situation of the Early Years sector overall, given the 
rising business rates, the living wage rising to £9 per hour over time, and increased 
pension costs.

19.6 The Forum agreed the Early Years Single Funding Formula for 2017/18 to be set 
at:
 Base rate £3.90 per hour.
 Deprivation supplement – based on IDACI as currently but average 16p per 

hour overall.
 Quality supplement – 2p per hour to be deducted to support the Early Years 

Team.

20. NATIONAL FUNDING FORMULA (MAINSTREAM) - UPDATE 

20.1 The Forum discussed the latest developments on the National Funding Formula 
Stage 2 consultation. Members acknowledged that as the consultation deadline 
approached, indications on whether the proposed formula in its current form, would 
indeed be implemented were not clear.  A number of MPs were publicly expressing 
their reservations around the proposals. Members of the Forum acknowledged that 
it was a very fluid situation.

20.2 The Forum agreed its final response to the National Funding Formula Consultation 
Stage 2, which was tabled at the meeting. The response set out the major concerns 
around the proposed formula, with a particular reference made throughout to the 
existence of the 3% funding floor which locked in advantage for some schools at 
the expense of pupils, including those with additional needs in other schools; and 
the perverse consequences for children with additional needs due to the depressing 
core funding.

20.3 In response to a question, the Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills 
confirmed that the Council’s response to the consultation reflected the F40 position, 
and for the most part outlined the same issues as the Forum’s response.

20.4 The Chair concluded the discussion by emphasising that the outcome of the 
implementation of the National Funding Formula had to be about achieving fairer 
funding.

21. CAPITAL 

21.1 The Forum received a report which set out the position of the Education Capital 
Programme.  Stewart King, the Lead Commissioner Education and Skills, reported 
that the total value of the FY 2016/17 capital programme was £23.189M.  Spend up 
to the end of February 2017 was £21.506M, which was marginally higher than the 
expected level for this point in the year.  The Forum noted the graph of spend 
against profile, set out in Annex 1 of the report.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

7 

21.2 The Forum was pleased to note that the DfE had recently confirmed that the bid for 
The Rissington School’s new build permanent pre-school provision, had been 
successful. It was noted that Gloucestershire had submitted the permitted six bids 
for funding, as part of the £40M of capital funding nationally from central 
government to support the introduction of 30 hours free child care for working 
parents from September 2017.  Whilst previously the DfE had announced that none 
of the bids were successful, following additional funding being identified this one bid 
was subsequently approved.

21.3 It was reported that the Education Funding Agency would now manage the build of 
the new free school on Clearwater Drive in Quedgeley.  Completion of the feasibility 
work by GCC indicated there was a gap of around £3M between the anticipated 
cost of GCC managing the build and the formulaic funding on offer from the 
Education Funding Agency. The Lead Commissioner for Education and Skills 
stressed that it would not be prudent for the Council to take on that level of financial 
risk.

21.4 The Forum noted the report.

22. SCHOOLS FORUM CONSTITUTION 

22.1 The Forum noted the Constitution complied with the Schools Forum 2012 
regulations, and the make-up of the Forum’s membership complied with the 
Schools Forum Operation Guide, therefore no changes were proposed for either.

22.2 The Forum noted the updated table summarising the Forum’s Powers and 
Responsibilities, published by the Education Funding Agency. 

22.3 It was reported that the biennial Schools Forum Elections which were due to take 
place in March of this year, had been postponed until 2018.  This was due to there 
being no reference made in the National Funding Formula consultation paper on 
the future of Schools Forums.  It was felt that a significant change in Forum 
membership at the current stage in the consultation on the NFF would not be 
helpful.  The Forum noted that the term of office for all non-school members and 
half of the membership of the schools members was due to end on 31 March 2017 
had therefore been extended to 31 March 2018.

22.4 However, the Forum noted that the following seats were vacant or were about to 
become vacant and a nomination process (ending 5pm 31 March 2017), for new 
representatives for those seats was currently underway:

 Primary Headteacher (Maintained) (2 seats) 
 Primary (Maintained) Governor
 Secondary (Maintained) Governor

22.5 In addition, the Chair informed the Forum that Jim Stenson, Secondary (Academy) 
Governor, would be leaving the Forum, his last meeting would be 21 June 2017. A 
nomination process would begin in due course for a new representative.

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

8 

23. F40 

23.1 The Chair provided the following F40 update:

 A briefing for MPs took place in Westminster on 20 February 2017.
 A letter, signed by 38 out of 41 F40 member authorities, was sent to the Prime 

Minister setting out the adverse consequences of the proposed
formula.

 Gloucestershire’s MPs continue to be kept up to date on F40 
developments.

 On 13 March 2017, a small group of Forum members met with David Owen, 
Chief Executive of the GFirst LEP, Gloucestershire’s Local Enterprise 
Partnership, to consider different ways of going forward.

24. UPDATE FROM THE OFFICE OF THE REGIONAL SCHOOLS COMMISSIONER 
SOUTH-WEST ENGLAND 

Steve Savory, as Deputy Director supporting the Regional Schools
Commissioner’s office, updated the Forum on recent developments.

25. DISCUSSION ITEM - LOCAL AND REGIONAL STRATEGIC PLANNING AND 
THE ROLE OF THE LOCAL AUTHORITY 

25.1 The Forum noted the discussion paper ‘Shaping the role of the County Council in 
Education’ which had been produced to set the future direction for the Council’s role 
in education and to consider collaborative working arrangements.

25.2 The Forum also noted the Regional Schools Commissioner Strategy Paper for the 
South West 2016/17.

Chairman

Meeting concluded at 4.05 pm

Page 8



NB This paper will be supplemented by a presentation at the Forum meeting

1 Introduction

1.2 DfE consultation on a national funding formula (NFF)

On 14th December 2016 the DfE launched a consultation on the introduction of a 
national funding formula for high needs alongside the proposals for a national 
funding formula for mainstream schools.  The consultation closed on 17th March.   No 
announcements have been made on the outcome of the consultation.  
Gloucestershire was a ‘loser’ on the formula proposals.  As a consequence the likely 
position is a cash standstill over the period 2017/18 to 2020/21.

One of the important features of the national funding formula proposals was to ring-
fence the Schools Block, removing the current flexibility to transfer funding between 
DSG blocks.

This paper assumes that the NFF for high needs will go ahead on something close to 
the proposal set out in the December consultation.  This assumption is based on a 

High Needs

Schools’ Forum 
Date

21st June 2017

Type of Decision For decision

Background 
Documents

Schools Forum report 16th March 2017

Author Stewart King, lead commissioner for education and skills

Purpose of Report To update the Forum on the development of a strategic plan for high 
needs and to seek guidance on key themes

Key 
Recommendations

The Forum is asked to:

 consider its role in overseeing the high needs programme

 advise on consultation and engagement with schools, parents 
and other stakeholders

 identify ideas to pursue

Resource 
Implications

The high needs block for 2017/18 total £57.2m and is likely to stay 
at the same cash level up to and including 2020/21

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



view that the formula proposals were, at least relative the mainstream NFF, 
uncontroversial.

1.2 The financial position in summary

Until 2016/17 spending has been contained within budget despite the pressures.  We 
have not to seek agreement from the Forum, as has been the case in many local 
authority areas, to transfer funding from the Schools Block.

But as reported to the Forum in March the high needs block was overspent by £2.0m 
(3.7%) in 2016/17.  The budget for 2017/18 agreed by the Forum in March allows for 
the impact of current trends thanks to a £1.3m cash increase in the allocation from 
DfE.  The position is not sustainable for 2018/19 and beyond with spending 
pressures/rising trends right across the high needs block.  

1.3 Strategic Plan

The DfE expects each local area to develop a strategic plan for high needs and has 
allocated funding to local authorities in order to create capacity.  The allocation to 
Gloucestershire is £247,000.  It will be a major piece of work to develop a plan that 
changes expectations, cultures and practices to both improve outcomes and contain 
spending within a budget that will be falling in real terms.  The key capacity we have 
is:
 John Reilly, current interim Headteacher at Laker’s Academy who will be 

working with us full time from September.  John has a wealth of experience in 
headship at both primary and secondary level, knows the county well and 
understands the local cultures.  John will be attending the Forum meeting and 
will share some initial thoughts

 The high needs programme will be my top priority.  Depending on 
announcements on the NFF for mainstream schools I anticipate devoting more 
than 50% of my time to high needs

 Capacity from headteachers, SENDCOs, business managers, parents, LA 
officers and others

 Project management support

2 The current position

2.1 Current trends

The ‘data dashboard’ at Annexe A sets out a range of relevant data on Education 
Health and Care Plans (EHCPs), exclusions and SEND attainment and progress 
data.  There is further information to add on:
 Nos of children identified on the school census as having SEND

Page 10



 SEND educational outcomes – attainment and progress
 Special school places and occupancy
 Post 16 outcomes and provision
 Analysis of provision specified within EHCPs – proportion on 1:1 support etc
 No of EHCPs ceased and reduced

A more sophisticated analysis of EHCPs - numbers, age groups, primary need and 
cost – is in development.  The analysis will also enable us to make a more robust 
assessment of the impact on the high needs budget if current practice continues.

But there are some clear trends:
 EHCPs are increasing, particularly for the 16-25 age group
 The demand is coming from schools rather than parents
 Placements in independent schools are increasing in number and cost
 Permanent exclusions from school remain very high

A simple conclusion from current trends is that radical changes will be needed 
in how we assess and meet needs and how we prioritise the available funding.

3 Progress to date

Developing a high needs strategy is a major piece of work.  We have set up a 
programme with a number of workstreams.  The programme incorporates or 
connects to a number of existing developments:
 GASH working group on Alternative Provision and Exclusions
 The SEND Strategic Implementation Plan
 The IRIS intensive service for young people  (a joint project with health and 

social care – see section 5 and Annex C)

Actions to date include:
 Compiling a data stocktake (in progress)
 Identifying the necessary resources, including John Reilly
 Briefings for staff, the Joint Additional Needs Development Group etc
 Developing the programme workstreams
 Establishing ‘design principles’ for the programme.  The Forum, schools, 

parents/carers etc may have views on these principles but I felt it was important 
to offer a view on what the end point might look like (Annex B)

The workstreams are:
 Data and  Performance Management 
 Alternative Provision and Exclusions 
 In-County (complex needs) 
 Inclusion in mainstream (Additional needs) 
 Financial Management 

Page 11



 Post 16
 Capital investment strategy 
 Inter-authority and partnership working 
 Consultation and Engagement

4 Key issues

I will say more about the programme and some initial thinking at the meeting and I 
anticipate that Forum members will have views on priorities, lines to follow etc.  But 
some obvious questions for the Forum are:
 What are the things we have to get right if we are to achieve the objective of 

improving outcomes and keeping within the budget?
 How should we be engaging schools?  And other stakeholders?
 How does the Forum see its role and that of the sub-group?  There is sub-

group meeting scheduled for 2.00 pm on Wednesday 28th June.  Depending on 
the outcome of the consultation on the introduction of a NFF for mainstream 
schools, oversight of the high needs block will be the Forum’s prime function.

5 Enablers for the high needs programme

Forum members may find it helpful to be familiar with three developments that are 
likely to be critical if we are to achieve the aims of the programme:

 IRIS 
This is a new service aimed at meeting the needs of our most high risk young 
people in-county in a flexible way that takes a highly individualised approach to 
care, therapeutic interventions, working with the family, residential provision 
and foster care.  In the past the route to meeting the care and health needs of 
these young people has been through residential placements.  But these 
placements have been high cost, inflexible and with variable outcomes.  More 
detail on IRIS is presented at Annex C.  It is a particularly important 
development for the high needs programme because the thinking on alternative 
provision with the Gloucestershire Association of Secondary Heads is based on 
a similar philosophy

 Resource Allocation System (RAS)  
The RAS is a holistic and outcome focused tool to allocate additional support to 
pupils with SEND.  It has been co-produced with parents/carers, Educational 
Psychologists, Advisory Teachers, SENDCos, Speech & Language Therapists, 
Special School Heads and Casework staff.  The RAS is due to be implemented 
from September.  The RAS process and timetable is detailed at Annex D

 The restorative approach.  

Page 12



Restorative Practice is an evidenced based approach which uses a core set of 
beliefs, principles and a way of being with people that builds and maintains 
healthy relationships, a sense of community and a shared sense of 
accountability.

It is about giving high levels of support and challenge to inspire people and 
communities to feel able to resolve their problems and shape their own futures.

There is evidence from elsewhere in the country that the restorative approach 
can have particular benefits for schools especially in terms of behaviour 
management and reducing exclusions for example. 

A restorative programme is up and running in Gloucestershire and includes a 
pilot at a secondary school, Tewkesbury and in a couple of primary schools.  
The original programme is attached at Annex E.

Stewart King
June 2017

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Last Updated: 15/05/2017   

Apr-17 May-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Q3 2016/17 
(31/12/2016)

Q4 2016/17
(31/03/2017) Trend Comment (quarterly) Jan-16  

(snapshot)
Jan-17  

(snapshot) Trend

Number of children and  young people with a 
Statement of SEN or an EHC Plan (0-25) 
including 'Not Glos pupils'

3179 3169 

Decrease in the total number of CYP 
with statements/EHCPs in 
Gloucestershire compared to previous 
month

3121 3179 

Increase in the total number of CYP 
with statements/EHCPs in 
Gloucestershire compared to 
previous quarter

2694 3118 

Number of children and young people for whom 
the LA maintains a Statement of SEN or an 
EHC Plan (0-25)

3098 3088 

Decrease in the number of CYP with 
statements/EHCPs maintained by 
Gloucestershire compared to previous 
month

3041 3098 

Increase in the number of CYP with 
statements/EHCPs maintained by 
Gloucestershire compared to 
previous quarter

2627 3044 

Mar-17 Apr-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Trend Comment (quarterly) 2014/15 2015/16
Two-year 

Trend
2016/17 
(to date)

Number of new requests for statutory 
assessment 70 47 

Decrease in the number of statutory 
assessment requests received 
compared to previous month

137 183 
Increase in the number of statutory 
assessment requests received 
compared to previous quarter

297 441  392

Number of new EHC Plans Issued (0-25) 39 56 
Increase in the number of EHCPs 
issued compared to previous month 125 70 

Decrease in the number of EHCPs 
issued compared to previous quarter 259 307  295

Number of Transformations Issued (Statements 
to EHCPs) 37 66 

Increase in the number of EHCP 
transformations issued compared to 
previous month

188 109 
Decrease in the number of EHCP 
transformations issued compared to 
previous month

791 653  297

2015 2016
Two-year 

Trend
2017 

(to date)

Number of Statements of SEN or EHC Plans 
ceasing (0-25) 5 59 

Increase in the number of 
statements/EHCPs ceased compared to 
previous month

24 18 
Decrease in the number of 
statements/EHCPs ceased compared 
to previous quarter

228 122  22

Mar-17 Apr-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Trend Comment (quarterly) 2014/15 2015/16
2016/17 
(to date) Trend SN Comparison

Nat 
Comparison

EHCP assessments completed within 20 weeks 100% 100%  All EHCPs issued within timescales 100% 100%  All EHCPs issued within timescales 100% 100% 100% 

   0-25 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) matrix

Children and Young People with Statements / Education, Health and Care Plans (0-25)

Increase in the number of CYP with 
statements/EHCPs compared to 
previous year

Increase in the number of EHCPs 
issued compared to previous year

Workflow

Comment (annual - full academic year 
comparison)

Comment (annual)

Increase in the total number of CYP with statements/EHCPs 
in Gloucestershire compared to previous year

Increase in the number of CYP with statements/EHCPs 
maintained by Gloucestershire compared to previous year

Decrease in the number of 
statements/EHCPs ceasing compared 
to previous year

Timeliness

Decrease in the number of EHCP 
transformations issued compared to 
previous year

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 May-17

Number of C&YP for whom the LA maintains a Statement of 
SEN or an EHC Plan (SEN2 Census)

Total Female Male

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to date)

Number of new requests for statutory assessment

0

200

400

600

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to date)

New assessment Requests received compared to 
New statements / EHCPs issued

New Requests Statements / EHCPs Issued

0

100

200

300

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to date)

Number of new requests for statutory assessment 
by age range

a.  Under 5 b.  Aged 5 to 10 c.  Aged 11 to 15
d. Aged 16 to 19 e. Aged 20 to 25

0

500

1000

1500

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 May-17

Age Range - Statements of SEN or an EHC Plan 
(SEN2 Census)

a. Under age 5 b. Aged 5 to 10 c. Aged 11 to 15
d. Aged 16 to 19 e. Aged 20 to 25

0

200

400

600

800

1000

ASD HI MLD MSI PD PMLD SLCN SLD SEMH SPLD VI

Statements of SEN or an EHC Plan by Primary Need
(1st May 2017, Capita One)

0
200
400
600
800

1000
1200

AL
TE

R
N

AT
IV

E
PR

O
VI

SI
O

N
 S

C
H

O
O

L 
/

PR
U

EA
R

LY
 Y

EA
R

S 
C

EN
TR

E

EL
EC

TI
VE

 H
O

M
E

ED
U

C
AT

IO
N

FU
R

TH
ER

 E
D

U
C

AT
IO

N
C

O
LL

EG
E

O
TH

ER
 IN

D
EP

EN
D

EN
T

SC
H

O
O

L

PR
IM

AR
Y 

SC
H

O
O

L 
/

AC
AD

EM
Y

SE
C

O
N

D
AR

Y 
SC

H
O

O
L 

/
AC

AD
EM

Y

SO
C

IA
L 

C
AR

E 
SE

TT
IN

G
 /

SP
EC

IA
LI

ST
 C

AR
E

PR
O

VI
D

ER

SP
EC

IA
L 

PO
ST

-1
6

IN
ST

IT
U

TI
O

N

SP
EC

IA
L 

SC
H

O
O

L
(IN

D
EP

EN
D

EN
T)

SP
EC

IA
L 

SC
H

O
O

L 
(N

O
N

-
M

AI
N

TA
IN

ED
)

SP
EC

IA
L 

SC
H

O
O

L 
/

AC
AD

EM
Y

(M
AI

N
ST

R
EA

M
)

TR
AI

N
IN

G
 P

R
O

VI
D

ER

YO
U

N
G

 O
FF

EN
D

ER
S

IN
ST

IT
U

TE

Statements of SEN or an EHC Plan by Setting 
(1st May 2017, Capita One)

0

100

200

300

400

Health
Authority

Parent School Social
Services

Young
Person

Number of new requests for statutory assessment 
by source

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 (to date)

0.00%

50.00%

100.00%

Health
Authority

Parent School Social
Services

Young
Person

Percentage  of new requests for statutory 
assessment by source

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 (to date)

P
age 15



Last Updated: 15/05/2017   

   0-25 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) matrix

Q4 2016/17 Trend Q4 2016/17 Trend Q4 2016/17 Trend Q4 2016/17 Trend
Primary Need: Age: Ethnicity: Gender:
ASD - Autistic Spectrum Disorder 556  a.  Under age 5 129  White 2664  Female 778 

HI - Hearing Impairment 39  b.  Aged 5 to 10 1109  Black or Black British 55  Male 2320 

MLD - Moderate Learning Difficulty 882  c.  Aged 11 to 15 1173  Asian or Asian British 70 

MSI - Multi-Sensory Impairment 5  d.  Aged 16 to 19 639  Mixed/Dual Background 140 

PD - Physical Disability 252  e.  Aged 20 to 25 48  Any other ethnic group 10 

PMLD- Profound & Multiple Learn Diff 73  Chinese 7 

SEMH - Social, Emotional and Mental Health 521  Information Not Yet Obtained 45 

SLCN - Speech Lang & Comm Needs 450  Refused 23 

SLD - Severe Learning Difficulty 230  Not recorded 84 

SPLD  - Spl Learning Diff(Dyslexia) 58 

VI - Visual Impairment 32 

Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Trend
Children in Care 134 145 135 140 

OLA Children in Care 36 36 36 38 

Care Leavers 7 13 16 20 

Children in Need 212 200 203 224 

Children subject of a CPP 19 23 23 22 

Adult Social Care 49

Mar-17 Apr-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Trend Comment (quarterly) 2015/16 2016/17 Trend

Total Number of Early Years Referrals 12 10 
Decrease in the number of EY referrals 
compared to previous month 33 36 

Increase in the number of EY 
referrals compared to previous 
quarter



Active Caseload Total 82 104 

No. of EY referrals allocated to:

Early Help Advisors 15 17  2 5  

Outreach 1 0  4 2  

Early Start Group 0 1  0 2  

Portage 2 2  4 2  

Combination 0 0  22 21  

Pending 9 8  0 0  

CYP with Statements / EHCPs open to Social Care (source: Capita One, LiquidLogic and ERIC)

SEN Statements and EHC Plans - Trend against previous quarter

Comment (annual)

Same number of EY referrals 
compared to previous year

Early Years

0

200

400

600

800

1000

AS
D H
I

M
LD M
SI PD

PM
LD

SE
M

H

SL
C

N

SL
D

SP
LD VI

Number of C&YP for whom the LA maintains a Statement of 
SEN or an EHC Plan (Capita One)

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

0

500

1000

1500

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Age Range - Statements of SEN or an EHC Plan
(Capita One)

a.  Under age 5 b.  Aged 5 to 10 c.  Aged 11 to 15

d.  Aged 16 to 19 e.  Aged 20 to 25

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

Gender - Statements of SEN or an EHC Plan
(Capita One) 

Male Female

0

5

10

15

20

25

Ap
r-

16

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n-

16

Ju
l-1

6

Au
g-

16

Se
p-

16

O
ct

-1
6

N
ov

-1
6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n-

17

Fe
b-

17

M
ar

-1
7

Ap
r-

17

Number of Early Years Referrals by month

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000

An
y 

ot
he

r
et

hn
ic

 g
ro

up

As
ia

n 
or

 A
si

an
Br

iti
sh

Bl
ac

k 
or

 B
la

ck
Br

iti
sh

C
hi

ne
se

M
ix

ed
/D

ua
l

ba
ck

gr
ou

nd

W
hi

te

Ethnicity - Statements of SEN or an EHC Plan
(Capita One)

Quarter 1

Quarter 2

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

0

50

100

150

31/03/2013 31/03/2014 31/03/2015 31/03/2016 31/01/2017

Children and young people with statements / EHCPs who are Children in Care

P
age 16



Last Updated: 15/05/2017   

   0-25 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) matrix

Mar-17 Apr-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Trend Comment (quarterly) 2014/15 2015/16
Two-year 

Trend
2016/17 
(to date)

Number of mediations (Date notified) 0 0 
Same number of mediations compared 
to previous month 6 4 

Decrease in number of mediations 
compared to previous quarter 8 3  11

Number of tribunals (Date notified):

Lodged 1 0 
Decrease in number of tribunals lodged 
compared to previous month 7 12 

Increase in number of tribunals 
lodged compared to previous quarter 24 26  23

Conceded or withdrawn 0 0  3 2  18 18  8
Lost 0 0  1 0  3 2  2
Won 0 0  0 0  3 0  0
Awaiting outcome / ongoing 1 0  3 10  0 6  13

Mar-17 Apr-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Q3 2016/17 Q4 2016/17 Trend 2014/15 2015/16
Two-year 

Trend
2016/17 
(to date)

Permanent Exclusions:

Total SEND Excluded 11 4  19 19 

Total Non-SEND Excluded 13 1  25 26 

Total Excluded (SEND & Non SEND) 24 6  44 45 

% SEND Excluded 46% 67% 
Increase in proportion of permanent 
SEND exclusions compared to previous 
month

43% 42%  63% 43%  42%

Fixed Period Exclusions:

Total SEND Excluded 287 64  403 615 

Total Non-SEND Excluded 325 83  456 751 

Total Excluded (SEND & Non SEND) 612 147  859 1366 

% SEND Excluded 47% 44% 
Decrease in proportion of fixed period 
SEND exclusions compared to previous 
month

47% 45%  51% 50%  46%

SEN Transport Cost (£M) Feb-17 Mar-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17 Trend 2014/15 2015/16
Two-year 

Trend
2016/17
(to date)

Year Start Forecast 0.7 1.0 
Increase in forecast cost compared to 
previous month 1.4 2.0  8.7 7.2  5.4

Actual 0.7 1.0 
Increase in actual cost compared to 
previous month 1.4 2.0  8.0 7.8  5.4

EY Actual £K 0.0 0.0 
Number of EY children transported 
same as previous month 10 4  39 74  12

Number of EY children transported 3 2 
Decrease in EY actual cost compared to 
previous month 13 6  61 109  18

Mediations and Tribunals

SEN Transport

SEN Exclusions

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to date)

Number of Tribunals lodged
(Academic year)

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14

C
ea

se
 to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n
St

at
em

en
t

Pa
rt 

2 
an

d 
3

Pa
rt 

2,
 3

 a
nd

 4

Pa
rt 

3

Pa
rt 

3 
an

d 
4

Pa
rt 

4

Se
ct

io
ns

 B
 a

nd
 F

Se
ct

io
n 

F

Se
ct

io
n 

I

Se
ct

io
ns

 B
, F

 a
nd

 I

LA
's

 d
ec

si
on

 to
 C

ea
se

to
 M

ai
n

N
ot

e 
in

 li
eu

R
ef

us
al

 to
 a

ss
es

s

R
ef

us
al

 to
 is

su
e 

a 
pl

an

R
ef

us
al

 to
 is

su
e 

af
te

r
as

se
ss

Grounds for Tribunal (Academic Year 2013/14 to 2016/17)

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

0

5

10

15

20

25

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to date)

Number of Tribunals lodged by age range
(Academic year)

a.  Under age 5 b.  Aged 5 to 10 c.  Aged 11 to 15

d.  Aged 16 to 19 e.  Aged 20 to 25

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to date)

Tribunal Outcomes (Academic year)

Conceded or Withdrawn Lost Pending Won

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to Apr-17)

Percentage of Permanent Exclusions on the 
SEND Code of Practice (Academic year)

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17
(to Apr-17)

Percentage of Fixed Period Exclusions on the 
SEND Code of Practice (Academic year)

SEND Permanent 
Exclusions by Need 

(Sep 16 - Apr 17)

ASD
MLD
SEMH
SLCN

SEND Fixed Period Exclusions by 
Need

(Sep 16 - Apr 17)

ASD

BESD/SE
MH
HI

MLD

SLCN

SLD

SEND Permanent Exclusions 
by Setting 

(Sep 16 - Apr 17)

Primary

Secondary

Special/APS

SEND Fixed Period Exclusions by 
Setting

(Sep 16 - Apr 17)

Primary

Secondary

Special/APS

P
age 17



Last Updated: 15/05/2017   

   0-25 Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) matrix

Mar-17 Apr-17 Trend Comment (monthly) 2014/15 2015/16
2016/17
(Jan 17) Annual Trend

Number of placements 
(exc. Peak and Coln) 133 136 

Increase in the number of 
Independent/NMS placements 
compared to previous month

Number of Placements 111 133 167 

Total cost £9,756,479 £9,064,730  Full Year Forecast £6,154,162.00 £6,446,190.00 £7,849,691.00 

Average Cost £73,357 £66,652 

Peak Agreement Placements 15 16 

Total cost £630,000 £630,000 

Average Cost £42,000 £39,375 

Coln Agreement Placements 21 21 

Total cost £1,055,862 £1,680,102 

Average Cost £50,279 £80,005 

Mar-17 Apr-17 Trend Comment (monthly) Sep-14 Sep-15 Sep-16 Annual Trend

Number of funded placements 530 526 
Decrease in number of Post 16 High 
Needs Learners compared to previous 
month

578 547 536 

Total cost £12,749,618 £12,705,085 

Average Cost £24,055.88 £24,154.15 

Number of 16-18 funded places 444 440 

Cost of 16-18 places £10,784,642 £10,739,319 

Number of 19-25 funded places 86 86 

Cost of 19-25 places £1,964,976 £1,965,767 

Out of County Placements

Comment (annual)
Increase in the number of 
Independent/NMS placements 
compared to previous year

Post 16 High Needs Learners

£0.00
£1,000,000.00
£2,000,000.00
£3,000,000.00
£4,000,000.00
£5,000,000.00
£6,000,000.00
£7,000,000.00
£8,000,000.00
£9,000,000.00

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17…

Number and cost of IND/NMS placements by year

£0

£1,000,000

£2,000,000

£3,000,000

£4,000,000

£5,000,000

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

A
SD

S
EM

H H
I

M
LD P

D

P
M

LD

S
LC

N

S
LD

S
pL

D V
I

Number and cost of IND/NMS placements, April 2017

No of Current Placements Total Cost 16/17

114

39

17
2

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Education Education and
Social Care

Health, Education
and Social Care

Health and Social
Care

Number of pupils in IND/NMS Settings by Funding Type, 
April 2017

£0.00

£1,000,000.00

£2,000,000.00

£3,000,000.00

£4,000,000.00

£5,000,000.00

Education Education and
Social Care

Health,
Education and

Social Care

Health and
Social Care

Cost of pupils in IND/NMS Settings by Funding Type, 
April 2017

P
age 18



Annex B

High Needs Programme 2017/18

Design principles for a new model for high needs

The objectives of the high needs programme i.e.

 Improving outcomes 
And

 Containing spending within budget – ensuring value for money 

will be met if:

Needs are really understood and plans are good

 Assessments of individual need start with the child and are made on a whole-
child basis

 There is a single approach for all ‘additional needs’
 Parents have confidence that the support available to support their child will 

meet his/her needs without the need for escalation
 Decisions on the deployment of resources for a child are made by those that 

know the child best and are accountable for achieving the outcomes
 Input of resources is short term and geared to meet a specified range of 

outcomes unless needs are clearly long term
 Planning for adult life and independence starts early

Schools and other providers are confident and able to meet additional needs

 Early years settings, schools and colleges have the capacity (resources and 
skills) to proactively manage a wide range of additional needs so that 
individual needs do not escalate

 Schools are accountable for their actions and are able to hold each other to 
account

 There is a low reliance on statutory process i.e. resources are directed at 
addressing needs rather than on the process

 Needs are met in the local community wherever possible
 Early years providers, schools and colleges are able to work effectively with 

LA support services 

The countywide system effectively supports children in their local communities and 
those with the most complex needs

 There is good long term strategic needs analysis and planning
 Needs are met in-county wherever possible

Page 19



 Support services connect; there are no professional jealousies or boundary 
issues

 Systems are in place to assess impact
 All provision and support services are commissioned and are accountable for 

the delivery of their brief, ultimately to the Schools Forum or successor body
 There is collective accountability for the system as whole and schools can 

‘own’ the system

Page 20



Annex C

IRIS

Intensive service for children and 

young people

P
age 21



Vision

• Work with our most high risk young people 

differently, ensuring placements are local, and 

offering flexibility whilst maintaining their local 

connections to family and friends, education and 

training

• Understand young people’s problems and enable 

them to cope better with life’s ups and downs

• Provide ongoing support to young people 

through a range of options 

P
age 22



We will do this by…..

• Enabling the young person to have one key 
relationship with a practitioner who will offer a 
range of interventions, supported by other 
specialists to provide stability during times of 
crisis

• Flexibility within the workforce 

• Timely, intensive, one-to-one support available 
24/7

• Education, employment, training and positive 
activities which encourage high aspirations

• Parent and carer support

P
age 23



What is IRIS?
Residential 2 residential children's homes (8 beds)

Independent

Supported Living

Partnerships with providers (8 beds)

Foster care 8 -10 + foster care beds

Casework team Social work, youth offending, mental health nursing and 

psychological, SaLT – case holding, consultation , assessment 

and planning

Intensive family 

and young person 

support

Functional family therapy, one to one family and young person 

support – in home and fast deployment

Therapeutic day 

provision

Education, therapeutic interventions and group based therapies 

– Alternative education provision

Place of safety and 

calm

Time out, emergency assessment place, could be secure, 

alternative to 136

Emergency and 

crisis responses

Operates 24/7, crisis response within 2 hours, at least 2 

emergency beds available (48 hour), fast in home deployment.

P
age 24



Who is it for?

Children and Young people for whom the 

current way of doing things isn’t working 

well.

P
age 25



What do we know about them?

P
age 26



What do we know about their parents 

and wider families?

P
age 27



Where are we up to
Residential Searching for properties

Independent 

supported living

Not commenced

Foster care 2 to 4 foster care beds

Casework team Youth offending and some psychological capacity, mental health 

nurses have been recruited.

Intensive family 

and young person 

support

Functional family therapy in place, some capacity for one to one 

family and young person support – not 24 hours and not at full 

capacity

Therapeutic day 

provision

Pilot in place in Tewksbury (2 places) – therapeutic support not 

in place, discussions with education provider partners 

commenced. 

Place of safety and 

calm

Not commenced

Emergency and 

crisis responses

Not commenced

P
age 28



Timeline
Residential 1st by January 2018, 2nd April - June 2018

Independent 

supported living

December 2017

Foster care Carers recruited by September 2017

Casework team Becoming gradually operational – fully staffed by August/ Sept 

2017

Intensive family 

and young person 

support

Extended team recruited by September 2017, offering extended 

hours gradually between November 2017 and April 2018

Therapeutic day 

provision

Pilot gradually extends (September 2017) Fully operational 

January 2018

Place of safety and 

calm

April 2018

Emergency and 

crisis responses

Fully operational April – June 2018

P
age 29



Initial challenges and risks

• Securing property and getting registered (both 

OFSTED and CQC)

• Securing staff, especially hard to recruit posts 

– social workers, nurses, registered managers 

and foster carers

• Ofsted delays and consequences – e.g. 

continued overall rise in children in care

• NHS investment not secured

P
age 30



The money – spend on placements

P
age 31



The money – projections and IRIS

Available budget 

for IRIS staffing 

and services 17/18

£0.8m

P
age 32



Bi monthly reports and monitoring

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex D

The Resource Allocation System in Gloucestershire

Terminology:
 EHCP – Education Health and Care Plan
 TAC – Team Around the Child

Within Gloucestershire County Council we have been developing a resource 
allocation system (RAS) to allocate resources for EHCPs over the last few years.  
The work on this tool has been led by Jane Shotbolt, Personalisation Officer and has 
been co-produced with parents/carers, Educational Psychologists, Advisory 
Teachers, SENDCos, Speech & Language Therapists, Special School Heads and 
Casework staff.

The RAS is a transparent, holistic  and outcome focused tool to allocate additional 
support to pupils with SEND (replacing the matrices).  The RAS focuses on ten 
generic outcomes to be achieved and then identifies the levels of difficulties that 
children/young people have in achieving these outcomes.  Evidence for scoring is 
based on professional reports, My Assessment/My Plan+, Family Contribution Form 
and any other relevant information.  

Case Co-ordinators score the RAS and this is verified by the Lead SEND Co-
ordinator.  The Personalisation Officer moderates these scores and then allocates an 
indicative resource based on similar cases.    Over the next couple of months we are 
working on a simplified converter to allow easy conversion from points scored to 
indicative resource.    

We have been trialling the RAS at the weekly SEND Resource Panel since end of 
January 2017 and with effect from September 2017 the RAS and the new processes 
to support it will be implemented.   

Page 35



RAS Process to be implemented between September and December 2017

Following Decision to Assess for EHCP:

 Once all reports are received, Case Co-ordinator completes RAS Form.

 RAS Form is verified by Lead SEND Co-ordinator and indicative resource 
allocated.

 Case Co-ordinator drafts EHCP and takes to TAC along with indicative 
resource.

TAC Meeting:

 TAC agree outcomes to be achieved by end of key stage.  

 TAC discuss and agree provision required to achieve outcomes.

 TAC to compare total resource recommended with indicative resource.

 If over indicative resource, TAC reconsiders provision and make all 
reasonable attempts to develop a draft Plan which will achieve all 
outcomes within indicative resource.

 If agreed resource is in line with indicative resource and less than 
equivalent of 15 hrs TAF and 2.5 hrs MDS (£10,363) then Lead SEND Co-
ordinator will sign off Plan.  If over this amount, Case Co-ordinator will 
take to SEND Panel.

 If TAC agree more resources are required, Case Co-ordinator will take to 
SEND Panel.

Page 36



RAS process for implementation from September 2018 onwards

EHCP Annual Review prior to Key Stage Transition

 Prior to AR, setting to send any updated reports to SEND Casework 
Team.

 Case Co-ordinator will revisit RAS and amend scores as necessary, using 
any new information etc.

 Lead SEND Co-ordinator to verify score and allocate indicative resource.

 Case Co-ordinator to notify setting of indicative resource ahead of AR.

 At AR, review existing outcomes and set new outcomes for next Key 
Stage.

 If over indicative resource, TAC reconsiders provision and make all 
reasonable attempts to develop a draft Plan which will achieve all 
outcomes within indicative resource.

 If agreed resource is in line with indicative resource and less than 
equivalent of 15 hrs TAF and 2.5 hrs MDS (£10,363) then Lead SEND Co-
ordinator will sign off Plan.  If over this amount, Case Co-ordinator will 
take to SEND Panel.

 If TAC agree more resources are required, Case Co-ordinator will take  to 
SEND Panel.

 Setting to submit Annual Review paperwork to SEND Casework Team.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
Building Restorative Approaches  

in  
Gloucestershire 

 
with Children, Young People and Families  

 
Proposal 

 
 
 
 
 

Authors  

 Cathy Griffiths, Head of Quality (Children & 
Young People), Gloucestershire County 
Council and the  

 

 Restorative Practice Development Team 
 

In consultation with the Restorative Practice 
Development Reference Group 
 

Sponsor Linda Uren, Director of Children’s Services, 
Gloucestershire County Council 

Date 30th September 2016 

 

Page 39



2 

Contents 
 
 

   
1 The Proposal Aims & Objectives 

 Context 
 Engagement 
 Leadership Commitment 
 Early Impact 

 

2 The Research  
3 The Strategic Landscape  
4 Proposal Part A – An Explicit Culture  
5 Proposal Part B – Putting it in Practice 

 Approach to Pilots 
 Approach to Training 
 Approach to Sustainability 
 Approach to Evaluation 

 

 

6 Risk Management  
7 Resources  
8  Quality Assurance  
9 Governance  

10 Recommendations  
  

Page 40



3 

1. Proposal Aims & Objectives 
 

Aim 
This report sets out the proposed way in which Gloucestershire County Council will 
implement and sustain restorative approaches to working with children and families, with 
each other, and with partners.  
 
Objectives 
To set out the strategic intention, rationale and practical steps for adopting restorative 
approaches across the children’s partnership, as  
 

1. An explicit framework for practice 
2. A cultural mind-set across organisations and  
3. A range of practical applications within services.  

 
The intended outcome of the proposed pilots is to secure better outcomes for children and 
families in Gloucestershire, by adopting restorative values and practices both strategically 
and in every day interactions.  

 
Context 

 
In August 2015, the Vulnerable Children’s Programme Board endorsed a scoping 
exercise to look at the potential practice models that could be helpfully applied across the 
piece, from Early Help through to Child Protection, across the children’s partnership, to 
help us think and work together differently.  The aim is to strengthen our common thread.  
 
The diagram above encapsulates a ‘way of being’ at the heart of restorative approaches, 
which the Vulnerable Children’s Programme Board (GCC) considered alongside 4 
practice framework options in August 2015.  
 
Restorative practice is about working ‘with’ others at every opportunity, in a way that sets 
clear boundaries and holds people to account (high challenge) as well as providing the 
support and encouragement for those challenges to be met (high support). In December 
2015, the Vulnerable Children’s Programme Board endorsed plans to engage and 
consult internal social care services and external organisations who work with children 
and families, about applying restorative practice in Gloucestershire.   
 
 

Page 41



4 

Engagement  
 
The approach has been explored collaboratively with a range of staff and managers 
across organisations between April and September 2016 (Engagement Phase) through a 
range of meeting styles. This secured opportunities to discuss the appetite for a 
restorative practice framework; the links to what was already happening; and the learning 
from Introductory and 3 day training. We spoke with:  
 

• Children’s Social Care  
• Youth Support 
• Educational Psychologists 
• Primary, secondary, special schools 
• Young People 
• Care Services, CCG – Public Health 
• Child Protection Chairs 
• Police 
• Restorative Gloucestershire 
• District Representatives  
• Adult Social Care - Positive Risk Taking  
• Human Resources (GCC) 

 
Leadership Commitment 
 
Feedback was collated and analysed and informed the strategic lead workshops in June 
2016 that were attended by most of those agencies listed above. Support from senior 
managers has enabled large numbers of people to be released for training and has 
endorsed the organic approach to building enthusiasm and emerging pilot proposals. 
This has meant that just through the Engagement Phase 
 

– We have engaged with over 500 people from a wide variety of agencies  
– 91 professionals have attended Introductory Days 
– 57 professionals have attended Level 3 Training  
– A facilitated workshop was held for GCC strategic leaders 
– A facilitated workshop was held with multi agency strategic leads 
– 367 people have been engaged through other events/meetings. 

 
Early Impact 
 
Training has been delivered during the engagement phase of the proposal in September 
2016. The overwhelming majority of staff accessing the training during the Engagement 
Phase became enthusiastic advocates of the approach and a willingness to implement 
the approach was evident; 
 

 Child Protection Chairs who went on the Level 3 training during the Engagement 
Phase, took back the learning to their team. As a result, several Chairs have 
begun to change their approach with a stronger emphasis on parental 
engagement and they asked if they could pilot the approach more extensively.  

 

 The Chair of the GSCB introduced a Restorative Practice problem solving circle 
to the Executive Meeting. The impact was that a strategic lead for Early Help was 
able to set out a partnership problem and receive 16 suggested ways forward that 
he reflected he would not have secured through the usual format.  

 

 The Head Teacher of a school for children with disabilities faced a difficult 
conversation with parents of a pupil who had displayed disruptive behaviour.  She 
decided to use restorative questions from the Introductory Training. She reflected 

Page 42



5 

that the impact was a very productive conversation with the parents in which 
shared ownership of the problem and constructive solutions were brought.  
 

 The Manager of the Participation Team noticed tensions building between some 
of our 15 Ambassadors for Vulnerable Young People. Some of the young people 
felt that one Ambassador was unprofessional because she used her phone in 
meetings. The Manager used a Restorative Circle with a facilitator. The impact 
was a frank discussion in which all the young people felt safe to say how they felt 
affected, and the behaviour of concern has stopped.  
 

2. The Research  
 

In the preparation of this proposal, research was considered in relation to similar work 
carried out internationally, nationally and outside Gloucester. This included  
 

 Research from the International Institute of Restorative Approaches; 
 

 Restorative Practice in Scottish Councils, University of Glasgow 2006; 
 

 Restorative Practice in Schools, CfBT Education Trust 2009; 
 

 Impact in/visit to Leeds, 2016 - reduced CP plans by 50%; ‘good’ Ofsted outcome 
for the LA; improved CYP outcomes across the city; 

 

 Impact in Hull- schools reporting reduced exclusions, increased attainment, 
improved community cohesion. Schools rated ‘outstanding’; 
 

 Impact in Wokingham – increased attendance, attainment, reduced exclusions, 
reduction in offending; over 40% of adults entering employment (many for the first 
time in 3 generations); 

 

 Impact in West Berkshire -  Increased community resilience, tier 4 mental health 
placements avoided, reduction in children on CP Plans.  

 
 

3. The Strategic Landscape 
 

The Engagement Phase has established that restorative approaches are not new to 
Gloucestershire. Its principles and practices have gained momentum since the 
establishment of Restorative Gloucestershire. This is a multi agency partnership 
whose roots began in Restorative Justice and who are now increasingly developing the 
use of wider restorative practices across services operating throughout Gloucestershire. 
 
A key point that the research returns to time and again, is the nature of ‘Restorative 
Justice’ as a subset of broader restorative practice. The latter refers to relationship-
building and pre-emptive interventions as well as positive, respectful ways of interacting 
with one another in everyday situations. This is recognised by Restorative 
Gloucestershire, whose focus started in reparation and is moving towards prevention. 
 

Page 43



6 

            
 
 
The proposal supports several strategic intentions including  
 

 A strength based problem solving approach to reducing demand 

 Increased child, family and community resilience  

 Strengthening positive relationships with local people 

 Increasing social connectedness to better safeguard vulnerable people.  
 
The wide field of approaches included in restorative practice therefore fit well with the 
vision and aims set out in a range of strategic plans, including:  
 

 The Children and Young People’s Partnership Plan 
 

 Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children Board Business Plan 
 

 The Asset Based Community Development and the Restorative Gloucestershire 
Partnership Plan (embedded in the Police & Crime Plan) 

 

 Building Better Lives (all age disability support, inclusion and empowerment) 
 

 The Supporting People Strategy 
 
A key consideration is BASE (Innovations Programme): a locally designed model being 
piloted to work with young people and their families, using attachment theory and 
relationship based practice to build a secure base and focus on engagement, motivation 
and capacity to change. The Engagement Phase established that not only is there a 
clear fit, but it is agreed that BASE is, in itself, a restorative approach, with the same 
underpinning principles and the aim to empower young people and their families through 
co-produced exploration of risk and resilience: “Things inside me and around me that 
help me to get through tough times, and sometimes make me even stronger”.  
 
The diagram below was made with Alice, an Ambassador for Vulnerable Children and 
Young People. Alice saw how the pilots we were discussing sat alongside an existing 
range of restorative approaches in Gloucestershire, with different governance 
arrangements but all sitting under one overarching ‘way of being’. This includes asset 
based development (police-led, community based) and Family Group Conferencing (a 
practice that is at the heart of the restorative approach).  The diagram shows the 
strategic landscape in which we consider the pilots proposed.  
 
 
 
 

Activities that build  
on Community 

Strengths 

Proactive Approach 
to preventing harm 

and conflict 

Activities that repair 
harm where there 
has been conflict. 

Page 44



7 

In summary, the national and local research highlighted just how applicable restorative 
approaches are across a range of settings and professional disciplines, bringing a shared 
sense of direction and a common language.  
 
There is an emphasis on people in strategic leadership positions owning and modelling it 
at all levels; whether through formal ways of applying restorative practice, such as the 
use of Family Group Conferences, or through the informal restorative processes used 
proactively to prevent harm, to make sure these are integrated into everyday work and 
used on-the-spot to deal with issues that arise.  
 
The proposal also fits with workforce development aims across organisations, providing a 
significant development opportunity for staff in the skills of relationship based, 
accountable and professional practice.  
 

4. Proposal  Part A –  An Explicit Culture 
 

 
The intention during the pilots is to support a common culture, across all organisations 
working with children and families, explicitly adopting restorative practices to build and 
maintain interpersonal relationships, resolve conflict and repair damaged relationships. 
We hope to establish a common set of restorative principles, underpinned by a clear set 
of skills and techniques.  
 

  
“If restorative practices are to reach their full potential then they need to be integrated 
into our everyday life, including the workplace. When restorative practices and language 
are embedded into the way we deal with all conflict and inappropriate behaviour, we are 
most likely to make a difference in the lives of those harmed and affected. An 
organisation which fully embraces restorative practices has the potential to create a 
safer, happier, healthier, fairer and more effective workplace for everyone. (Les Davey 
2008) 

Page 45



8 

5. Proposal Part B – Putting it in Practice  
 
The following proposal is a product of a sustained period of engagement and partnership 
work between January and September 2016. Acknowledgement and thanks are given to 
those involved in exploring the model and/or shaping the proposal, including the 
Restorative Gloucestershire partnership, the Restorative Practice Reference Group, 
Andrea King (Head of Service, Prevention and Community Resilience, West Berkshire) 
and Mark Finnis (Restorative Practice Trainer).  
 

Approach to Pilots 
 
By proposing a small number of pilot sites, the intent is to  

a) Support what we already have.  
b) Think big, start small (and sustainably) 
 

Supporting what we already have 
 
There is already a well established and Nationally Accredited Family Group Conference 
Team (FGC) who work restoratively with families to support them to develop their own 
solutions to the difficulties they are facing.  The FGC brings together a child’s wider 
family to talk about concerns and make a plan for the future care of the child.  FGCs are 
internationally recognised as an evidence-based method of working with families.  
Current staffing levels within the team mean that they only have capacity to support 
those families who are referred as part of the statutory requirement.  However, there is 
currently a 12 month pilot running in Cheltenham in the Early Help Partnership to test the 
use of FGC at an early help level, the first evaluation is due in October 2016. 
 
 

 
The diagram overleaf comes from a Reference Group meeting which discussed where 
restorative approaches would have a big impact in year one, based on what the data 
shows and where the interest lies. The pilots will test the use of restorative approaches at 
various points from Early Help to Child Protection. 
 

Page 46



9 

 
 
Pilot 1 – Leadership and Organisational Culture 
 
Summary: This pilot will support all pilots mentioned below in the restorative ‘way of 
being’. The use of a restorative mind-set and methodologies in meetings and in daily 
interactions will promote shared problem solving and accountability. A range of tailored 
training, workshops and learning circles between October 2016 and March 2017 to 
support strategic leaders and frontline managers in the use of a range of meeting styles, 
chairing approaches, affective questions and problem solving circles. Qualitative 
evaluation speaking with staff, partners and service users.  
 
Links: This pilot is about culture and so it underpins all location based pilots listed below.  
Training and Consultancy: Mark Finnis with ongoing practice and learning support from 
the RP Team 
RP Leads: Cathy Griffiths (Head of Quality), Rebecca Jelf (Comm. Officer) 
Supporting Resources: RP Reference Group activity.  
 
Pilot 2  - Restorative Practice in a Secondary School 
 
Summary: We will introduce restorative approaches in a Secondary School, to evidence 
how it strengthens a sense of community and accountability, develops skills for learning, 
reduces disruptive behaviours, increases attendance and reduces exclusions. The pilot 
secondary school will be Tewkesbury school. The Senior Leadership Team and groups 
of young people will be trained in restorative practice. Pilot evaluation will be through 
performance data monitoring and through qualitative indicators to be negotiated with the 
school and pupils.  
 
Links: Priors Park is a catchment area for Tewkesbury School 
Training: Mark Finnis with ongoing practice and learning support from the RP Team  
RP Leads: Molly Macleod 
Supporting Resources: Tewkesbury School, Tewkesbury Partnership, RP Reference 
Group 
 

Page 47



10 

Pilot 3 – Restorative Practice in a Community  
 
Summary: We will work with the local community, pupils and their families who live in 
Priors Park.  Local schools and Tewkesbury Borough Council Partnership have identified 
that this is a locality that would benefit from developing a restorative ethos to build on 
community strengths and promote wellbeing across and between generations.  
 
Links: Tewkesbury School. Aston Project in Priors Park.  
Training: Mark Finnis with ongoing practice and learning support from the RP Team and 
Restorative Gloucestershire  
RP Leads: Becky Beard 
Supporting Resources; Tewkesbury Partnership, RP Reference Group 
 
Pilot 4 – Restorative Practice in Child Protection Conferences 
 
Summary: Parents attending a Child Protection Conference will feel less ‘done to’ rather 
than ‘worked with’ as this is in the best interests of the child and secures sustained 
change. Gloucester Pods 3 &5 (Assistant Pods Managers, Team Managers for all Pods 
plus staff from Pods 3 & 5, totalling 18 staff) who cover the Barton & Tredworth and 
Westgate wards of Gloucester will pilot new ways of supporting and preparing children 
and their parents before the conference. All Pod Leads will be trained at the same time to 
support RP across the city. Professionals in the Families First Plus team will also be 
trained in order to keep the link back to early help. 
 
Links; Police Community Resilience initiative (ABCD)Barton & Tredworth and Westgate  
Training:    Mark Finnis with ongoing practice and learning support from the RP Team 
RP Leads: Sarah Cairns, Cathy Griffiths 
Supporting Resources: CPC team, Pods, Families First Plus Team Gloucester, 
Reference Group, affiliated input and evaluation from Forest of Dean R&A, C&F Teams.   
 
Pilot 5 – Restorative Practice in a Primary School 
 
Summary: We will introduce restorative approaches in a Primary School, to evidence 
how it strengthens a sense of community and accountability, develops skills for learning, 
reduces disruptive behaviours, increases attendance and reduces exclusions. The pilot 
primary school will be Moat Primary School. The Senior Leadership Team and groups of 
young people will be trained in restorative practice. Pilot evaluation will be through 
performance data monitoring and through qualitative indicators to be negotiated with the 
school and pupils. Lead Commissioner for Education and the Restorative Practice 
Development Team will be negotiating the details of a restorative pilot with the new 
Executive Head of Moat Primary School. 
 
Links: Matson (Pod 3) is in the catchment area for Moat School 
Training: Mark Finnis with ongoing practice and learning support from the RP Team 
RP Leads: Sarah Cairns 
Supporting resources: Moat Primary, Gloucester Pods, Families First Plus Team 
Gloucester  
 
Affiliated pilots 

 Gloucestershire Innovations/BASE 

 Development of Family Group Conferencing in Families First Plus teams 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



11 

Emerging Opportunities for the Future 
 

 Joint working between Restorative Gloucestershire and GCC Commissioning, 
designing a residential service from the start with restorative approaches in mind, 
linked to the current proposal and national initiatives to reduce numbers of young 
people going into the Criminal Justice System. 

 

 Other schools hoping to adopt a whole school restorative ethos including a 
Special School (possibly Bettridge) and another Secondary school in Gloucester. 

 

 Children’s Social Care Practice Development Team are buying consultancy time 
from Mark Finnis for their team training, to ensure restorative practice informs 
their work. 
 

 Adult Social care are also employing Mark Finnis to train staff in restorative 
practice. 
 

 Opportunities are currently being discussed to expand the use of Family Group 
Conferences across levels of need. 

 
 

Approach to Training 
 
In consultation with Mark Finnis and recognising our learning from the Innovations 
Programme and Restorative Gloucestershire, we propose to implement an intensive and 
sustainable approach to training. This will ensure that all of us achieve a standardised 

competence in restorative approaches.             
 
Expectations  

 To have a skilled and confident workforce participating in a unifying approach to 
practice.  

 That participants take ownership for their learning and development and that we 
collectively support and challenge each other’s approach to practice.  

 
Aspirations  

 To develop practice that delivers the best outcomes to positively impact on the 
lives of vulnerable children, young people, their families and communities.  

 To develop excellence through using proven and pioneering ways of working, and 
by continuously improving and adapting.  

 

Approach to Sustainability 
 
The guiding principle we will use, informed by evidenced based research and the 
experience of developing BASE in the local Innovations Programme, is that training 
alone, as a workforce development strategy, is insufficient. People need a combination of 
training, self-directed learning, reflective spaces, and a clear competency framework to 
work towards.  

 

Though restorative practice may look simple, or something that ‘we do already’, it can be 
deceptively so if taken at face value. Those adopting it may need to learn (or unlearn) 
quite a lot to apply it as intended. We will therefore plan how to embed that learning in 
ways that recognise that learning and application is a co-production, meaning the support 
needs and challenge required are defined by all participants; this is not a top-down 
strategy.  

 

Page 49



12 

To guard against training delivery without impact, all pilot areas benefiting from the 
training will be required to sign up to a negotiated SLA about the remit of the pilot and 
input to the delivery and evaluation phases. A role description will also be co-produced 
setting out the expected commitment, related benefits and support available in 
championing, managing and/or supporting pilot activity. 
 

Multi-Agency Awareness Training

Training 
Offer

 
 

As the Engagement Phase closes, the training will be targeted for those involved in the 
proposed pilots. Half or one day introductory training will still be made available as far as 
possible for continued engagement and awareness raising. Key staff will be identified as 
Practice Champions for their organisation and will be instrumental in ongoing awareness 
training. They will be offered Level 3 RP training and will be supported by Restorative 
Practice Team members who will take on a mentoring role.  
 
Learning circles will be developed to support each pilot and all attendees of Level 3 training, 
tailored to fit in with existing demands as far as possible. Using the restorative principles will 
allow the participants to shape and guide the learning towards competency, in a way that 
works for them.  
 
The purpose of the learning circles will be to promote a deeper understanding of the 
philosophy and practice of working restoratively; to further develop staff confidence and 
competence in applying restorative practice in their daily work; and to engage participants in 
thinking about and discussion of the complexities of working restoratively (potentials, 
obstacles, requirements and limitations).  
 
A Reference Group is developing out of the existing Engagement Phase Practice 
Workstream. The role of this group will be to make sure the professionals at all levels 
across agencies are engaged in the delivery and evaluation of the pilots; that awareness 
raising and training is fit for purpose; and that the voice of children and families is at the 
heart of pilot evaluation. Communications taken from post training feedback, Learning 
Circles and Evaluation meetings will be collated by members of the Reference Group. 
These will form part of the reporting back to participants and to programme stakeholders as 
part of monthly meetings/report.  
 

Page 50



13 

We are currently in negotiation with the identified national trainer and holding discussions 
with Restorative Gloucestershire and BASE, to establish a viable Train the Trainer scheme 
for local sustainability. 
 

Approach to Evaluation 

 
Pilot evaluation will in itself forge restorative ground; from October to December 2016 it will 
involve working with staff in the pilots to further define the qualitative differences that people 
want to see, alongside the data. Evaluation will involve  
 

 Use of Questionnaires 

 Interviews with a range of professionals, children and families 

 Observation of a range of meetings and activities  

 Analysis of national and local service and school statistical data. 
 

 

6. Risk Management 

 
The reference group, over time, have identified the potential barriers to sustained 
learning and application of restorative practice, as well as to achieving consistent quality 
in restorative practice. These have included concerns about whether  
 

• there will be sufficient provision for learning from practice; 
• seniors will be able to safeguard the time needed; 
• there will be pressure to meet more targets; 
• there will be pressure to carry out restorative events within unrealistic timescales; 
• restorative approaches will be used in unsuitable cases or situations; 
• there will be adequate resourcing. 
 

 

7. Resources 
 
The resources for the proposed pilots has been mapped in terms of the associated cost, 
and the human resources that will be made available to support design, delivery and 
sustainability.  
 
The funding is firmly understood to be a set up budget. Continuation of this budget 
cannot be relied on for ensuing years. A key aspect of sustainability planning will be to 
explore sources of other funding where the restorative approaches merge directly into 
future partner initiatives. 
 
 

8. Quality Assurance  
 

The Quality Assurance Framework will be designed to provide clear, practical information 
and encourage and support individuals and organisations to achieve high-quality 
restorative practice consistently  - and to measure its’ impact.  
 
Although the Framework will include nationally recognised standards to inform practice, 
the development of individual setting assurance mechanisms on top of this will be 
supported and encouraged. This will be to make sure that quality assurance is informed 
by the commitment, insights and wisdom of young people, parents and practitioners.  
 
The Quality Assurance Framework will be informed by the 3 key questions embedded in 
Results Based Accountability (Mark Friedman), which in turn informed the 

Page 51



14 

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Children Board approach to Quality Assurance (deep 
dives): 
 

 
 

How Much Did We Do? 
Input measurements across all pilots will be established, to track for example how many 
people were trained, what learning circle activity was put in place and what restorative 
activities were tested. This informs the pilot evaluation of quality and impact below.   

 
How Well Did We Do It? 
Quality in restorative practice is about safety and consistency, adherence to principles 
and values, and achievement of fair outcomes. Quality assurance will therefore involve  
 

• Children/families who may be encouraged to participate in restorative initiatives; 
• Practitioners, to be reassured skills adhere to best practice after initial training; 
• Service leads, for development of practice and achievement of desired results; 
• Oversight bodies who need to have confidence in the services they scrutinise. 

 

Is Anybody Better Off? 
Impact measures will be negotiated with each pilot site. They will take account of the 
objectives of the restorative practice in each setting; 
 

 In a school for example, it will include data about attendance and exclusion, but 
also locally negotiated measures of quality and impact such as a positive mutually 
supportive learning environment, a reduction in disruptive behaviour.  

 

 In communities or workplaces, qualitative objectives might be improvement of 
relationships, reduction in conflict and strengthening of collaboration.  

 
Evaluative methodology will include a range of observed practice, eliciting stakeholders’ 
views, assessing participation levels, and measuring pre-negotiated performance 
outcomes. For example;   
 

 Impact of Learning circle implementation across all activity 

 Case Audits 

 Staff Survey, Team Self Assessments and feedback from service users 

 Exit interviews from staff  

 HR feedback 

 IT systems reports on outcomes. 
 

Page 52



15 

Consideration of organisational culture in terms of commitment to restorative approaches 
will require self assessment of, among others, governance structures, decision-making 
processes and monitoring mechanisms. The reference group will develop an 
organisational culture checklist to support self and peer evaluation. 
 

9. Governance 
 
Currently, the work involved during the Engagement Phase and the design of the 
proposed pilots reports to the Vulnerable Children Board (Gloucestershire County 
Council). Consideration will be given to determining the most appropriate multi agency 
governance structure.  
 
A key objective of the Governance arrangements will be to develop the capacity, 
systems, infrastructures and oversight that support the growth, evolution and 
sustainability of restorative approaches.  
 

10. Recommendations 
 
For the Director of Children’s Services to  
 

1. Endorse the proposed areas for practice pilots, as recommended by senior 
partners involved in pilots, Restorative Practice Development Team and the 
Restorative Practice Reference Group. 

 
2. Discuss with partners what Pilot 1 (Leadership and Organisational Culture) will 

include in the detail, supported by the Restorative Practice Development Team. 
 

3. Discuss with partners where the multi agency governance for delivery and 
evaluation of the pilots best sits

Page 53



 
 

 

Page 54



 

1. 2016/17 DSG outturn 

The 2016/17 DSG outturn position was a net overspend of £1.152m 

representing 0.28% of the 2016/17 DSG budget. 

A further £5.694m of balances were remaining from 2015/16 resulting in the 

total DSG balances at the end of 2016/17 being £4.542m representing 1.10% of 

the 2016/17 DSG. 

2016/17 Outturn and Maintained School Balances.  

Schools’ Forum 
Date 

21st June 2017 

Type of Decision For decision 

Background 
Documents 

Previous year balances report Schools Forum 22nd September 2016 

16th March 2017 High Needs Schools Forum report. 

Authors Sue Hall Finance Business Partner 

Neil Egles Schools Finance Manager 

Purpose of Report To inform Schools Forum on the 2016/17 Outturn Position for DSG 

and non-DSG and reach agreement on the recommended use of 

DSG balances. 

To update the Forum on the maintained school balances at the end 

of 2016/17, and to consider whether any claw back should apply. 

Key 
Recommendations 

Recommendation 1: That Forum notes the use of the DSG balances 

at the end of 2016/17. 

Recommendation 2: That Forum agrees no claw back should be 

applied to maintained schools balances at the end of the 2016/17 

financial year. 

Resource 
Implications 

DSG balances are available for ‘one off’ use but only on DSG block 
areas. 

If any school balances are clawed back from maintained schools 
they would have to be allocated through the following years funding 
formula to maintained schools and academies. This could lock 
temporary funding into on-going MFG requirements. 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



The breakdown between the DSG blocks was as follows: 

 

Part of this carry forward figure relates to elements for early years and for 
maintained schools dedelegated budgets and these elements will be carried 
forward for use in the same areas. 
 
The £0.69 million early years under-spend in 2016/17 related to lower than 
expected payments for nursery education and capacity building for 2 year old 
placements. Part of the carry forward will be used to support further capacity 
building in 2017/18.  
 

  
 
 
High Needs 
The level of risk on high needs remains high. The overspends in 2016/17 as 
shown in Annex A have totalled over £2m and there are some clear trends 
evident that are of major concern in managing high needs over the long term 
(as detailed in the 16 March 2017 high needs Forum report).  
 
The Forum agreed in March 2016 that £2.3m of the DSG balances could be set 
aside for a high needs development reserve and in September 2016 agreed 
that any uncommitted DSG balances should also be held for high needs.  
 
The budget has been agreed for 2017/18 but is clearly not sustainable into the 
future without some major changes.  These issues are considered further under 
the high needs paper on this agenda.  
 
The DSG balances are therefore planned to be used as follows: 
 

Page 56



 
 
Recommendation 1 
That Forum notes the use of the DSG balances at the end of 2016/17 
 
 
2. Children & Families Summary Outturn Position 2016/17 – Non-DSG 

The outturn position for Children & Families was an over-spend of £3.83 million  

Over the last three years there has been a sustained increase in demand for 

social care including children coming into care and this has caused significant 

pressures and over-spends within children’s services and in particular against 

the external agency placements (£4.48m) and in-house fostering budgets 

(£0.6m). The budget for 2017/18 includes funding to  develop a project which 

will look to reduce residential costs by supporting young people to step down to 

foster care or to return home as well as additional funding to cover the 

increased volume of placements.  

Under-spends which offset the cost pressures include Supporting People, home 

to school transport, disability services, support to schools and academies and 

the release of inflation contingencies not required in-year 

 

 

3. Maintained School Balances at the end of the 2016/17 Financial Year. 

 

The Schools Fair funding scheme allows schools to carry forward, from one 

financial year to the next, any surplus or shortfall in expenditure, relative to the 

school’s budget share for the year, plus/minus any balance brought forward 

from the previous year. 

 

Key figures to note about the balances held at the 31st March 2017 are: 

 

Page 57



 208 schools are in surplus. 

 15 schools (7 more than last year) are in deficit. All of these are receiving 

support to draw up and implement recovery plans in line with the deficit 

process that was agreed by Forum. 

 Total Maintained School Balances decreased by £4.14m (17.4%) made up 

of: 

o Revenue Balance decreases of £3.54m (15.6%) 

o Capital Balance decreases of £0.29m (34.9%) 

o Removal of £0.30m of balances relating to two academy conversions. 

 

A more detailed breakdown across the different sectors is shown below. 

 
 

Page 58



 
          

The DfE have also released a document on Expenditure by Local Authorities and 

Schools on Education, Children and Young People’s Services in England, 2015-16  

As this information is one year out of date and does not separately show the impact 

of changes in balances due to academy conversions it is of limited use. A table on 

England School Revenue Balances from this document is however shown below for 

information: 

Page 59

http://dera.ioe.ac.uk/28017/3/SR63_2016_Text.pdf
http://dera.ioe.ac.uk/28017/3/SR63_2016_Text.pdf


 

 

Claw back 

 

123 mainstream schools (58%) held revenue balances at the end of 2016/17 above 

the claw back thresholds (5% of ISB Secondary/ 8% of ISB Primary). The excess 

amount above the thresholds represented £7.1M (41%) of the total £17.3m 

mainstream revenue balances held. This is a drop of £2.7m (28%) in the amount of 

excess balances that were held at the end of 2015/16. 

 

Excess funds can however be retained above the thresholds where these have been 

committed for: 

 

 Creditors/Accruals 

 Grants received in advance 

 Partnership funds 

 Revenue contributions to capital 

 Other Exceptional Circumstances 

 

 

Retaining a claw back facility in LA schemes is optional under DfE guidance. DfE 

guidance also states that “any claw back mechanism should have regard to the 

principle that schools should be moving towards greater autonomy, should not be 

constrained from making early efficiencies to support their medium-term budgeting in 

a tighter financial climate, and should not be burdened by bureaucracy. The 

mechanism should, therefore, be focused on only those schools which have built up 

significant excessive uncommitted balances and/or where some level of redistribution 

would support improved provision across a local area”. 

 

Page 60



The DfE have clarified that if any funds are clawed back from maintained schools 

these would need to be used for the benefit of maintained schools and academies. 

It's not permissible to allocate that funding only to maintained schools or to allocate 

funds mid-year. Any funds clawed back would need to be allocated through the 

formula in the following year. This could result in a position where some of the 

clawed back funds have to be reallocated back to the schools it was clawed back 

from. 

 

At its 24th June 2015 meeting the Forum decided that it would be prudent for a claw 

back provision to continue to feature in the Scheme for Financing Schools, but that 

claw back would be instigated in exceptional circumstances only. 

 

It was also agreed that the best method of reviewing excess surplus balances in the 

future would be for the Council’s Deficits Officer Group to contact representatives of 

the schools holding the largest excessive balances, to identify the reasons behind 

the surplus and for that group to advise each school on appropriate action to use 

their surplus where appropriate. 

 

A summary from the Council’s Deficits Officer Group on the actions taken is below: 

 

Deficit Schools  

Governors Budget Plans for maintained schools in 2016/17 projected a total deficit of 

£508,068.  

The senior officer group which reviews deficits has continued to meet monthly to 

track progress on deficit reduction. Where particular concerns have been identified, 

heads and chairs of governors have been invited into Shire Hall for a discussion 

about the actions which need to be taken.  

Only 6 of the 12 schools which projected a deficit position have actually ended the 

year in a deficit position. The total deficit for these schools is £348,667. However, 

nine additional schools, which had not projected a deficit at the beginning of the year, 

ended the year in a deficit position totalling £145,495. Officers have considered each 

of these schools and are satisfied that these schools will return to a surplus position 

in the near future.  

 

A number of other schools have submitted governors’ budget plans for 2017/18 that 

show a deficit at year end.  We are in the process of clarifying the position for these 

schools, and challenging where necessary. 

 

 

 

Page 61



 
 

Schools with large surplus balances 

The top 10 maintained schools with the largest surplus balances at the end of 

31st March 2016 were asked to provide a detailed breakdown of the surpluses and 

their proposals for the use of that surplus in the future. The responses were 

considered by the Council’s Deficits Officer Group. The Headteacher and Chair of 

Governors of the school with the highest surplus attended a meeting with LA officers 

to discuss the school’s financial position and identify priorities for the future. We are 

pleased to report that as a result of the meeting between the management of Tuffley 

Primary with LA officers, the surplus balance has been reduced by 32% by the end of 

2016/17. The remaining surplus is budgeted to be reduced by further 60% during 

2017/18. 

 

The senior officer group has reviewed all maintained schools holding surplus 

balances relating to the financial year 2016/17. Schools with the largest balances 

were identified and asked to provide the reasons for their surplus and their plans for 

future expenditure. 

The balance carried forward by the school with the largest surplus is made up from a 

combination of grants and savings. These savings are generated due the resource 

sharing across the federation which the school is part of. The school has submitted a 

budget plan for 2017/18 which will allow for further intervention work with pupils to 

raise standards and reduce the balance by 50% by the end of 2017/18 financial year. 

The senior officer group will review the plans provided and will continue to monitor 

the schools to ensure planned expenditure takes place as identified in their 

submission. 

 

Recommendation 2 on school balances 

That Forum agrees no claw back should be applied to maintained schools 

balances at the end of the 2016/17 financial year. 

Page 62



 

 

Page 63



 Annex A 

 

P
age 64



Annex B 

 
 

Extract from the Revenue Outturn Report for 2016/17 presented to Cabinet on 
19th June 2017 

 
Children and Families Outturn 
 
The outturn position for Children & Families is a £3.83 million overspend. 

Over the last three years there has been a sustained increase in demand for social 

care including children coming into care (March 2017 613 cases compared to April 

2014 479). This has caused significant pressures within children’s services and in 

particular against the external agency placement and fostering allowances budgets 

resulting in the overspend. Senior managers have been reviewing all admissions to 

care as part of a process of understanding and challenging practice. In addition 

robust scrutiny of high cost placements have been carried out by senior managers to 

ensure appropriate provision has been in place but the underlying issue has been 

the volume of placements required. The financial recovery plan has been reviewed 

and updated throughout 2016/17 to mitigate the volume increases wherever 

possible. 

The major variances for non-DSG, with summary explanations, are as follows: 

The external placement budget is £4.48 million overspent (47.9% above budget). 

The volume and cost of placements for both residential and fostering has caused the 

budget to overspend with the demand for complex cases requiring specialist 

placements, supported living and support packages arrangements remaining 

constant. The budget for 2017/18 includes funding to  develop a project which will 

look to reduce residential costs by supporting young people to step down to foster 

care or to return home as well as additional funding to cover the increased volume of 

placements.  

In-house fostering services are overspent by £0.6 million due to costs of additional 

allowances relating to the volume of placements. Special guardianship allowances 

are also over-spent by £0.25 million due to the increased number of orders which 

have been made. There is an in-year pressure in SEN services due to casework 

team demands and responding to increased activity in high needs cases (£0.7 

million).  

Safeguarding staff budgets received £2 million investment in 2016/17. Social 

workers have been recruited to fill the additional posts but agency staff were 

employed to provide experience where there are newly qualified workers or where 

caseloads remained high. The staffing budgets are £0.23 million overspent due to 

agency staff usage while the new structure embeds. A further investment of £1.7 

million is included in 2017/18 for the second phase of the investment in social 

workers.  

 

Page 65



Annex B 

 

 

Section 17 and discretionary payments for children in care are over-spent by £0.55 

million (121.7% of the budget). Changes in practice have been introduced replacing 

the use of ad hoc arrangements with a more coherent commissioning framework. 

Over time this should reduce some of the financial pressures in this area. 

Underspends to offset the cost pressures include Supporting People and welfare 

reform support of £0.63 million due to additional savings being achieved above 

target, the release of inflation and activity contingencies (£1.15 million) not required 

in-year and  home to school transport and access budgets of £0.73 million due to 

staff vacancies and lower commitments against transport contracts. Other under-

spends include support to schools and academies of £0.19 million due to staff 

vacancies and disability services of £0.17 million, due to lower costs against 

residential units, contracts and care packages.  

 

Page 66


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 High Needs
	SEND Data Dashboard_Apr17  SF report Annex A
	High Needs SF21Jun17 Annex B
	High Needs SF21Jun17 Annex C
	High Needs SF21Jun17 Annex D RAS
	High Needs SF21Jun17 Annex E

	8 Outturn and school balances 2016/17

